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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (“SAs™). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon (continued)

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Com pany’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole.
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the *Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account.




(d)

(e)

()

(g)

(h)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has not paid / provided any remuneration to its directors during the year ended
March 31, 2024.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company, as detailed in note 39 to the Financial Statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 2024.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

Chartered
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

v)

vi)

Based on our examination which included test checks. the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and subsequent to
the year-end.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

Rahul Mukhi

Partner

Membership No.099719

New Delhi, May 16, 2024
UDIN: 240997 19BKHBLP3097




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of
the Company on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report the following:

() (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during
the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not have any immovable properties. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company’s inventories comprising of properties held for resale have been physically
verified during the year by the management of the Company. In our opinion, the frequency of such
verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate.
No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of the security of current
assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(iii) The Company has not made investments in and provided any guarantee or security to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. However, the Company has granted secured
and unsecured loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and to other parties during the
vear in respect of which:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has provided loans to companies as follows:

Loans (Amount
in Rs. lakhs)
Aggregate amount granted /provided during the year
- Others 3,488.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
- Others 19,853.75

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in or provided security to or
provided guarantees to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the
year. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature
of loans during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has granted loans during the year to companies where the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or
receipts are regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not extended / granted fresh loans during the year to the
respective parties to settle the dues of the existing loans.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, to
the extent applicable to it. The Company has not entered into any transactions in respect of investments,
security and guarantees covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly. clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services provided by
it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues have been subsumed
into Goods and Services Tax (“GST™).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the
Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at
March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to GST, Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Value Added Tax or Cess or
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viil) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any term loan during the year. In respect of the
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year, such loans were applied for the purpose for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting
on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries. Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order
is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(x1) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in the Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) are not
applicable to the Company.

(xii1) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit issued to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) As explained in Note 46 to the Financial Statements, as at March 31, 2023 the financial assets
of the Company constitute more than fifty percent of its total assets (netted off by intangible assets) and
income from financial assets constitutes more than fifty percent of the gross income of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2023. In terms of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 read with Reserve
Bank of India’s Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and RBI’s
press release 1998-99/1269 dated April 8, 1999 in relation to determination of ‘Principal business’ for
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs), in our opinion, the Company is required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a non-banking financial company..

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

Chartered

Accountants




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

(¢) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
during the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions related
to corporate social responsibility in terms of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

ahul Mukhi

Partner

Membership No.099719

New Delhi, May 16, 2024
UDIN: 24099719BKHBLP3097




Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indiabulls Investment
Advisors Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICATI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Financial Statements.

Chartered
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use. or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

apful Mukhi

Partner

Membership No.099719

New Delhi, May 16, 2024
UDIN: 24099719BKHBLP3097




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(All amounis in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Asat As at
Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 4(a) 571
Intangible assets 4(b) 26.38 33
Financial assets
Loans 5 1,973 46 1.823.13
Trade receivables 6 64.05 276.72
Other financial assets 7 4545 67595
Deterred tax assets(net) 8 1.371.84 1.430.20
Total non-current assets 3.487.09 4,252.38
Current assets
Inventories 9 120.23 120.23
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 91616 733.29
Cash and cash equivalents I 10.71 12.00
Loans 2 19.853.75 17.870.25
Other financial assets 13 691.72 37444
Current tax assets (net) 14 47.42 188.83
Other current assets 15 145.22 176.59
Total current assets 21,785.21 19475.63
Total assets 25,272.30 23,728.01
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 16 35,550.00 35.550.00
Other equity 17 (10.404.20) (12.018.52)
Total equity 25,145.80 23.531.48
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 18 5.80 6795
Total non-current liabilities 5.80 67.95
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 - 15.00
Other current liabilities 20 120).55 111.75
Provisions 21 0.15 1.83
Total current liabilities 120.70 128.58
Total equity and liabilities 25.272.30 23,728.01
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This 1s the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ¢

Firm Registration No. 016827N

#’m\'a r Choudhary Akshay Kumar Tiwary

Director
DIN: 00366348

Rahul Mulkhi huwan Chand

Partner

Membership No. 099719
New Delhi. 16 May 2024

Whole time Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 01679090

New [Delln, 16 May 2024
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Manish Rustagi

Company Secretary



Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

i
IV

VI

Vil

VI

Xl

Xl

X

Revenue from operations

Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets at amortized cost
Other income

Total revenue (1+11+111)

Expenses

Emplovee benelits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Impairment losses

Uther expenses

Total expenses (V)

Profit before exceptional items and tax (IV-V)
Exceptional items
Profit before tax (VI-VII)
Tax expense
Current tax
Deterred tax
Total tax expenses
Profit for the vear (VII-IX)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(A)-Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

(B)-Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (A+B)

Total comprehensive income for the year (N+XI)

Earnings per equity share (Rs. 10 per share)

Note

22
23
24

29

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

(1) Basic (Rs)
(2) Diluted (Rs)
Face value per equity share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This 1s the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 016827N

Rahul Mukhi

Partner

Membership No. 099719
MNew Delhi. 16 May 2024

e

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

__{%

Amiteshwar Choudhary Akshay Kumar Tiwary
Whole time Director Director

DIN: 01679090 DIN: 00366348

New Delhi, 16 May 2024

c/'“‘"“m

170.25 290.01
1.71 0.54
1.673.32 1.713.01
1,845.28 2,003.56
108.02 28234
0.17 0.93
1127 14.76
48.98 1.200.00
30.26 67.49
198.70 1.565.52
1.646.58 438.04
1,646.58 438.04
51.80 (77.71)
51.80 (77.71)
1.594.78 515.75
26.11 36
(6.57) (0.80)
19.54 2.36
1,614.32 518.11
0.45 0.15
0.45 0.15
10.00 10.00

e

Bhuwan Chand
Chief Financial Officer

STanish Rustagi
Company Secretary



Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax 1,646 58 438.04
Adjustments for
Interest Income from Inter Corporate Deposits (1.49597) (1.463.16)
Unwinding of interest income (162 69) (175.70)
Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets at amortized cost (1.71) (0.54)
Interest on Fixed Deposits (1.06) (12.78)
Lxcess provisions written back (5.55) (53 46)
(Profity/Loss on disposal of fixed assets (0.17) 7.99
Finance costs 0.16 093
Depreciation and Amortisation 11.27 1476
Provision for Gratwity and Compensated Absences (381 939
Share-based payment expense B (1897)
Provision for impairment loss due to expected credit loss 4012 1,200 00
Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working capital 27.17 (55.50)
Adjustments for
Loans 1407 13981
Trade receivables and other financial assets 300.64 322.09
Other non-current assets - 382514
Other current assets 31.37 18.03
Provisions (3391) (35.17)
Other current habilities 14.35 (176.54)
Cash generated from operations 35369 4,037 86
Direct taxes refund/(paid) (net) 141 41 (78.34)
Net cash generated from operating activities 495.10 3,959.52
B Cash flow from investing activities :
[‘nll:r-cu:'p(:r.ul.e deposits (given to)repayment received from (1.983.52) (5.650.75)
fellow subsidiary companies (net)
Sale of Property, plant and equipment 3.00 4122
Interest Received 1.499.29 1.475.78
Net cash used in investing activities (481.23) (4,170.75)
¢ Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) Secured Loans (Including Current Maturity of Long Term R (1.04)
Debt) (Net)
Praceeds from/( Repayment of) Short Term Borrowings (Net) (1500 1500
Interest paid (1.16) (0.43)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (15.16) 13.03
D Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C ) (1.29) (198.20)
E  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 12.00 210.20
F Cash and cash equivalents at the close of the year (D + E ) 10.71 12.00
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants *
Firm Registration No. (116827N bl »
. :é W e
Rahul Mukhi Amiteshwar Choudhary Akshay Kumar Tiwary Bhuwan Chand M ustagi
Partner Whole time Director Director Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
Membership No. 099719 DIN: 01679090 DIN: 00366348
New Delhi, 16 May 2024 New Delhi. 16 May 2024




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity Share Capital

(Issued, subscribed and paid up) ( face value of Rs. 10 per equity share)

(i) Current reporting vear

Balance as at 1 April 2023

Changes in Equity Share
Capital due to prior period
errors

Restated balance as at 1
April 2023

Changes in equity share
capital during the current
year

Balance as at 31 March
2024

35.550.00 - 35.550.00 - 35.550.00

(i) Previous reporting vear
) in Equity Sha 'h s i ity sh
il oA e st b1 | ot B 7t s 31 Mt
alance as at 1 April 202 “apital due to prior y April 2022 p I3 2023
errors vear

35.550.00 - 35.550.00 - 35.550.00
B. Other Equity
(1) Current reporting vear

Reserves and surplus
iculars S i 3 i Total
R Sl el W oaeng Other component of equity Retained earnings ot
account
Balance as at 1 April 2023 9.45 4.91 (12,032.88) (12,018.52)
Changes i accounting policy/prior period errors - - E 3
Restated balance at the beginning of the current
reporting vear 9.45 4.91 (12,032.88) (12,018.52)
Total Other Comprehensive income for the vear - - 19.54 19.54
Profit for the year - - 1.594.78 1,594.78
Transferred from share options outstanding account - - 6.34 6.34
Transferred {0 retained earnings (6.34) - - (6.34)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 11 4.91 (10,412.22) (10,404.20)
(ii) Previous Reporting vear
Reserves and surplus

Particulars Share options outstanding Total

Other component of equity

Retained earnings

account
BRalance as at 1 April 2022 28.81 4.91 (12,551.38) (12,517.66)
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous
reporting vear 28.81 4.91 (12,551.38) (12,517.66)
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the vear - - 2.36 2.36
Profit for the vear - - 51575 515.75
Transferred from share options outstanding account - - 0.39 0.39
Iransferred to retained earnings (0.39) - - (0.39)
Emplovee share-based payment (credit) (18.97) - - (18.97)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 9.45 4.91 (12,032.88) (12,018.52)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred in our report of even date.
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors L
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No .Y &:\
/ / /
J_,J—l»u e
Rahul Mukhi Amiteshwar Choudhary Akshay Kunfar Tiwary Bhuwan Chand Rustagi

Partner
Membership No. 099719
New Delhi, 16 May 2024

Whole time Director
DIN: 01679090
New Delhi, 16 May 2024

Director
DIN: 00366348

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2024
(Al amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note - |

Company Overview:

Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Brokerage Limited) (“the Company™) was incorporated on August
22. 2008. On January 15. 2009 the Company received a certificate of registration from the Securities and Exchange Board of India
("SEBI") under sub —section | of section 12 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 1o carry on its business as stock and
share brokers. Accordingly, all provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act. 1992, and rules and regulations relating
thereto are applicable to [IAL. During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company surrendered its trading membership in all segments
with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and in cash segment with the BSE Ltd. (BSE). On September 17. 2013, SEBI,
vide its letter to the NSE and BSE. confirmed the cancellation of the Company's registration certificate with effect from March 28, 2013,
On March 28, 2013, NSE issued a notification approving the Company’'s request for surrender of membership in all segments.

In accordance with the provisions of section 13 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Companies
(Incorporation) Rules. 2014, the members of the company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on April 29. 2017, accorded their
approval to change the name of the Company. The Company has since received fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change
of name from the Registrar of Companies. National Capital Terntory of Delln & Haryana dated May 12. 2017, in respect of the said
change. Accordingly. the name of the Company was changed from Indiabulls Brokerage Linnted to Indiabulls Investment Advisors
Limited.

In accordance with the approval of the members of the Company. vide special resolution passed at their Extraordinary general meeting
held on April 29, 2017 and of the Registrar of Companies. National Capital Territory of Delhi & Haryana, and pursuant to the provisions
of Section 13 and other applicable provisions. if any, of the Companies Act. 2013, read with applicable rules made thercunder, new set of
Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the Company i accordance with Table A of Schedule | of the Companies Act. 2013, inter alia
modifving sub clause 5 of the erstwhile main object of the MOA, as reproduced below. was adopted as follows

1) To act as mvestment advisors and/or distributor for all third party product in financial service sector including insurance products such
as life, pension, fire, motor & other products and to carry on the business of insurance either directly or as an insurance agent. insurance
broker or otherwise.

2) To engage in the business of insurance ntermediation and acting as corporate agent, direct insurance brokers, composite insurance
brokers for life. general & health, re-insurance brokers. insurance consultant, assessors, valuers and surveyors. for the purpose of soliciting
or procuring life or general or health insurance business for clients and insurance companics

3) To carry on the business of providing business process outsourcing and all other services (0 insurers and insurance intermediaries
mcluding but not limited to data entry. procurement. compilation. analysis and processing. report generation. discrepancy marking, gquality
check of proposal forms, processing of claims and claims support activities. providing of infrastructure and communication support
facilities, data sharing and providing of referrals.

4) To acquire. hold / sell properties. buildings, farms, lands tenements and such other moveable and immovable properties and to rent. let
on hire and manage them and to act as consultants. financial advisors and to give expert advice and advice on acquisition and commercial
exploitation of real estate and suggest ways and means for improving efficiency in real estate development and 1o act as real estate agent
and immovable property dealers

5) To carry on in India or ¢lsewhere the business to undertake. develop. build, design. orgamize, promote. finance. operate. mamtain or
manage Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone(s) (SEZ), including Multi product and Muluservice Industrial Parks, SEZ. Software
Parks, IT Parks and 10 act as developers, co-developer of Industrial Parks. Special Economic Zonets) and any other industrial, commercial
or social infrastructure or other facilities necessary for the development of Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zonels). Software Parks, IT
Parks including development. construction. run repair, maintain, decorate, improve, remodel, build, operate and manage roads. bridges.
highways. gaslines, gardens. public places, buildings. and other structures, developments, utilities ete. and to do all other related acts.
deeds and things as may be necessary from time to time.

During the year ended March 31, 2018, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the relevant Real Estate Regulation Act i various
states in India, the Company was registered as a real estate agent and has commenced such activities subsequent to obtaining the aforesaid
registrations.




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(Al amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note -2
2.1 General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements (‘financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015
(by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA™)), The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 May
2024

2.2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee which is the functional currency of the Company. These financial
statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial nstruments which are measured at fair value or
amortized cost at the end of cach reporting peniod. as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost 1s generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or
paid to transfer a hability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method.

2.3 - Current versus Non Current Classifications

The Company presents assets and labilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification

An asset as current when it s

(1). Expected to be realized or imended to sold or consumed in normal operating cyvcle

(11). Held primarily for the purpose of trading

(1i1). Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period. or

(iv). Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when

(1). It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(). It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(1), It 15 due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or

(1v). There 1s no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other habilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle 1s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization m cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating ¢yele.

Note - 3
Material Accounting Policies:

a)  Use of estimates and judgements:
In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, management has made judgements. estimates and assumptions that affect the
apphication of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities. income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongomg basis. Revisions (o accounting ¢stimates are
recogmzed prospectivelv.




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(ANl amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

MNote - 3 (continued):

b) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of services (“performance obligations™) to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company has received or expects 1o receive in exchange for these services (“transaction price”). When there is
uncertainty as to collectability. revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price. which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts. rebates. scheme
allowances, price concessions, incentives. and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes
taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the

most likely method) based on accumulated experience and underlving schemes and agreements with customers,

The Company follows the principles established by Ind AS — 115 Revenue from contracts with customers for reporting information

about the nature. amount. timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from the contracts with its customers.

* Income from Brokerage and commission is recognized on accrual basis. generally as set out under the terms of
contracts/agreements with respective customers.

* Income from fee based consultancy is recognized on an accrual basis in terms of the contrac
customers.

* Interest income is recognized using the effective iterest method as set out in Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the
amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. The effective interest method 1s a method of caleulating the amortized cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or

fagreements with respective

interest expense over the relevant period.

Taxes on Income:

Current tax

Current Tax is determined at the amount of tax payable mn respect of taxable profit for the vear as per the Income-tax Act. 1961,
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the financial statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Entity’s current tax is
calculated using tax rate that has been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and habilities are not recogmized if the temporary difference anses from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and habilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sutficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset 10 be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Entity expects. at the end of the reporting period. o recover or settle the carrving amount of its assets and liabilities, Deferred tax
liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realized. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate o items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. in which case. the current and deferred tax are also recognized n other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively,




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
AN amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note = 3 (continued):

d)

e)

2)

h)

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost
to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use. An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carryving
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized

Depreciation on Property. plant and equipment is provided on straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 o
the Companies Act. 2013, Assets costing less than Rs. 5.000 each are fullv depreciated in the year of capnalization

Intangible asscts

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight=line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
uselul life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis,

The estimated useful hfe of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each financial vear and the
amortization period is revised to reflect the changed pattern. if any.

An intangible asset 1s derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset. measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrving amount of the asset. and are recogmzed n profit or loss when the asset is derecogmzed

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there i1s any indication that an asset mav be impaired. If any such
indication exists. the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net
selling price and its value in use. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrving amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized n the Statement of Profit and Loss. 1 at the Balance Sheet date there 1s an indication
that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized only when there 1s a present obligation as a result of past events and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of obligation can be made. Contingent hability s disclosed for (1) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or (2) Present obligations ansing from past events where it 1s not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation or a rehable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made. Contingent Assets are not recognized mn the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of meome
that may never be realized

Financial instruments
A linancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a fimancial asset of one entity and a financial habihity or equity mstrument of
another




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(Al amounis in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note 3 (continued):

h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recogmzed imnitally at fair value plus. in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss. transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A “debt instrument” i1s measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (*SPPI7)
on the principal amount outstanding.

Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective mterest rate ('EIR™)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
itegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,

Debt instrument at FNTOCT (Fair Value through OCT)
A “debt instrument” 15 classified as at the FVTOCL i both of the following criternia are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value

Fair value movements are recognized i the OCL However, the Company recognizes interest income., impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gam or loss previously recognized
in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument. which does not meet the cniteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVIPL

In addition. the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument. which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCIH critena. as at
FVTPL. However. such election 1s allowed only 1f doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as “accounting mismatch™) Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the profit and loss

Equity Investments

All equity investments in entities other than tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classity the same either as
at FVTOCT or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCL then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends. are recognized in the OCL There 1s no recycling of the amounts from OCH to P&L. even on sale of mvestment. However.
the Company may transfer the cumulative gam or loss within equity

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.
Investments in tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at amortized cost




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(AN amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note 3 (continued):

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or. where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (1.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement: and either (a) the Company has transferred
substanually all the risks and rewards of the asset. or (b) the Company has neither transterred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset. but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company apphies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments. and are measured at amortized cost e.g. loans. debt sccurities. deposits. trade
receivables and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables under Ind AS 18,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and nisk exposure. the Company determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit nisk has not increased significantly. 12-month ECL is used
to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly. lifetime ECL is used.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial habilities are classified. at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. borrowings.
pavables. or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate. All financial labilities are
recognized imually at fair value and. n the case of borrowings and payables. net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other pavables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial labilitics depends on their classification. as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are in profit or loss when the habilities are derecogmzed as well as through the EIR amortization process Amortized cost 1s
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade payables and other

contractual habihities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial habilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial habilities designated upon inital recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the imtal date of
recognition. and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For habihities designated as FVTPL. fair value gamns/losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/losses are not subsequently transterred to profit and
loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such hability
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss,




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(Al amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note 3 (continued):

h)

i

K)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition
A financial hability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability 1s discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing

financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
ofanew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention o settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the lability
simultancously.

The legally enforceable nght must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, msolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty

Inventories
Inventories comprising of properties held for sale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Mimstry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the vear ended March 31. 2024. MCA has not notified any new
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company
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Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Naotes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al ameonnts in Ry lakhs wnless stated othenvise)

Note - 5
Loans-Non current
(at amontized cost)
Deposits for Underwriting/distribution of real estate projects
Security Deposits
Consudered good-Unsecured

Note=- 6
Trade receivables-Non-current

As As al

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1,973 .46 1.823.13
1,973.46 182313
Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good 64 05 276,72
Unsecured, which have sigmificant increase w credit nsk 786 82 1.140 95
850 87 1.417.67
Less: Impairment loss allowance due to expected credit loss (786.82) (1.140.9%)
6405 276.72
Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024
Particulars 1-2 -3
Suo Less than 6 months |6 months -1 vear Vears VEArs More than 3 vears Total
Undisputed  Trade receivables — considered
(1 good 0,43 15.74 0.7% .69 4540 64 (5
Undisputed  Trade Recervables — which have
(1) significant meresase m credit risk 0.73 27.03 136 29] 7193 109 96
(i) {Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit umpaired - - = - - -
Disputed  Trade Recevables — considered
{iv) good - = - = - -
Disputed  Trade Recenables — which have
vl significant increase m credin rsk - - - % F:
(vi) | Disputed  Trade Receivables — credit impaied 4:51 166:37 840 1790 47968 67686
it Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023
Particulbars -2 7-3
S no Less than & months |6 months -] vear vears vears More than 3 vears Total
Undispued  Trade receivables — considered
[{1] good 223 4,46 1247 34:1 223 35 276,72
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
(u} significant increase in credit risk 374 747 2091 3738 374 58 464.08
(i) |Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - = = =
[hsputed  Trade Recervables — considered
(v} good - - - = - =
Disputed  Trade Recervables — which have
(v sipmificant werease m eredit risk - - - - - &
(v1) | Disputed  Trade Recenables — credit impaied 548 10 64y 040 2369 54631 676 87
Note-7
Other lnancial assets -Non current As at As at

Balance with banks*
= freed deposits with ongmal maturity of more than twelve months
Interest accrved on fixed deposns

Other recenables
Unsecured. consudered good

Unsecured, which have sigmficant mcrease m credit risk

Less. Impawment loss allowance due to expected credit loss

*Pledged against overdraft facility taken from HDFC Bank Limued

Note - §
Deferved tax assets

Deferved tax assets:

Avrising out of temporary differences due 1o:

Dazallowances wis. 43B of the Income Tax Aet, 1961
Disallowances u's 40A{7} of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Share based payment reserve

Underwritmg deposits measured at amornzed cost.

Provision for impawment loss due to expected credit loss allowance
Property, plant and equip and other ble assers

Deferved tax assets (Total)

31 Marech 2024

31 March 2023

z 300,00
- 2.26
4545 373 69
166122 220991
1.706 67 2.583.60
(1.661.22) (2.20991)
4545 675,95

As at As an

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

.19 278
131
Z48 248
40.78 315
131090 1.310.90
1618 1T
1.571.54 1,430.20




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(AN oy i Ry lakhs wnless staved atherwise)

Note-§

Deferved tax assets (Net) [Continued]

Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended 31 March 2024

Charged/{credited) Chargad/ {credited)
As at Vo tatimeator o other As at
I April 2023 comprehensive 31 March 2024
profit and loss g
Deferved tax assets / (liabilities):
Disallowances u's. 43B of the Income Tax Act. 1961 278 259 - 019
DMsallowances w's 40A(7) of the Income Tax Act. 1961 1478 .90 {6:57) 1.31
Share options outstanding reserve 248 - - 248
Underwrtng deposits measured at amornzed cost. 8215 41 38 - 40,78
Provision for impairment loss due to expected credit loss allowance 1.310.90 - - 131090
Property, plant and and other gible assets 1711 003 1618
Deferved tax assets (nef) 1.430.20 180 (6.57) 1,371,584
Note- 8
Deferved tax assets (continued ):
Movement in deferrved tax balances for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Charged)’ credited Chnrged (redited)
\ﬁ a NS s to other As at
1 April 2022 comprehensive 31 March 2023
profit ar loss e
Deferved tax assets |/ (labilities):
Disallowances u's. 438 of the Income Tax Act. 1961 501 25 - 2R
Disallowances u's 40A(7) of the Income Tax Aet, 1961 2206 648 {180 14.78
Share options outstanding reserve 729 481 - 248
Underwriting deposits measured at amortized cost 121.06 389 - 8215
Effect of reversal of financing component from revenue 545 545 - -
Provision for impairment loss due to expected credn loss allowance 1,175 61 (135.29) - 131090
Right of use assets - - - -
Property, plant and and other wible assets 16 81 (0.30) - 17.11
Deferved tax assels (net) 1.353.29 {77.71) (0.80) 1.430.240
Tax losses for which no deferred ax asseis has been recognized
Expiry fimancial vear (as per Income Tax Act, 1961) As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unused tax losses
| Apnl 2027 - 31 March 2028 1.908.25 3354 49
| Apnl 2028 - 3] March 2029 1,396 83 139683
1 April 2029 - 31 March 2030 497673 4.946.80
Unabsorbed depreciuon for indefimite penod 186.39 190,52
8 468 20 Q%88 64
Note - 9
Inventories As at As ar
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Stock-m-trade 120.23 120:23
120.25 120.23




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(AN amoumis in Ry lakhs undess siated otherwive)

Note - 10

Trade receivables-Current As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good 9l6 16 733,29
Unsecured, which have sigmificant increase in credit risk 1,57255 1,229:79
248911 1.963.08
Less: Imp loss all due 10 d eredit loss (1.57295) (1,229.79)
91616 733.29
(i) Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024
Particulars 12 -3
S no i i Less than 6 months |6 months -1 year _years vears More than 3 vears Total
Undisputed  Trade bles — considered
(i) wood 610 225.1% 1137 24.23 64927 Gl6 1o
Undispured  Trade Recenables — which have
()| significant increase n credil risk 10.48 386,62 19.52 41.60 111473 1.572.95
(i) [Undisputed Trade Recevables — credit impawed - - - - i -
Dizputed  Trade Recevables = considered
{iv) wood - - - - o -
Disputed  Trade Recewvables — which have
v significant merease ui credit 1isk - - - - F E
(b | Dusputed  Trade Recervables — credit impaired - - - - - W
(i) Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023
Particulars 2 =3
S no Less than © months |6 months -1 vear Nears vears More than 3 vears Total
| Undisputed  Trade receivables — considered |
[} good 593 1181 33103 0067 591.85 733.29
Undssputed  Trade Receivables — which have
{u) significant inerease m eredit nsk 9296 19 80 55.40 152.05 992 58 1229 7¢
[ [Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredit impaued - - - - = =
Dusputed  Trade Recenvables — considered
(iv) good = = - = - -
Disputed  Trade Receivables — which have
(vl significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) | Dhsputed  Trade Recervables — credit immpaied - - - - = -
Note- 11
Cash and cash equivalents As at As at

Cash m hand
Balance with banks
- in current accounts

Note- 12
Loans - Current
(at amortized cost)

Inter-corporate deposits
=10y fellow subsidiary companies

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1071

1200

12.1H)

As at

31 March 2624

As at

31 March 2023

19.853.75 17,870.25
19.853.75 17,870.25

*Unsecured, short term inter corporate deposits beanng imerest at the rate of $.25% 1o %% per annum (repayable on demand ) grven to fellow subsidiary compames for s busimess sctivities The

loan has been utlized for the purpose it was granted

ial Assers
Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, which have significant increase in credin nisk

Less: Impawment loss allowance due to expecred credit loss

Note-14
Current tax assets (net)

Advance income tax/1ax deducted at source (net)

[Net of provision for taxaten 31 March 2024 Rs. 491.25 lakhs (Previous vear: Rs. 491 25 lakhs)]

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

691,72
1.187.62
1,879.34
(1,18762) (627.97)
691.72 374,44
Asmt As at

31 March 2024
4742

31 March 2023

188 83

47.42

135.83
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Notes to the linancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounis in Ry lakhs wnless siated otherwise)

Note- 15
Other current assets

Balance with government authorities
Advance to employees
Advance w supplers

Note = 16
Equity Share capital

k

i

.

Y.

Authorized

Equuty shares of face value of Rs 10 2ach

Issued and subscribed and paid up

Rs. 10 each fully pusd up

at the b

Reconcilintion of the number of shares and
Equity shaves, fully paid-up

Balance at the beginning of the vear
Add Issued duning the year
Balance at the end of the year

Shares held by Shareholders each holding more than 5% shares:

Name of the Sharcholder
Equity shares of 2 10 each fully paid up

Dham Loans and Services Limnted ("DLSL")

Sharesheld by promoters at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
12493 144 ()
2029 3243
. 016

ll.‘.&. l".'m

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Na. of shares Amount Na. of shares Amount
35.55,00.000 35.550.00 35.55.00.000.00 35.550.00
===l-="£'g
35.55.00,000 35,550,040 35,55 00.000.00 35.550.00

35,550.00

and at the end of the year:

As at 31 March 2024

i‘i“ﬂﬁ&ﬂu

As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
35.55,00,000 35,550.00 35.55.00,000 35.550.00
5
35,55,00.000 35.550.00 35.55.00.000 35.550.00

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

No. of Shares held *% of Holding No. of Shares held *w of Holding
35,55.00.000 100 35,55,00,000 1000

| Nao. of Shares

| of total shaves |

o Change during the vear [

35..‘5.01}_”0”1 | ) lJu'u|

Nil |

| No.of Shares | *u of total shares |

%o Change during the year

31 March 2023
Promoter name
Dham Loans and Services Limued ("DLSL")

] 35.55.00,000 | 100 G0%]

1

Nl

i Rights, preferences and restrictions atiached to the equity shares:

vil

Vil

2 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs 10 per share Each holder of fully pad up equity share 15 emnled 10 one vote per shase.  The final divadend
proposed by the Board of Duwrectors. of any. s subject 1o the approval of the shareholders m the ensumg Annual General Meenng

b In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be emiitled 10 recerve semainmy assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amoumts, The
distribution will be m proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

The Company has not ssued any bonus shaces duning the current year and five vears immediarely preceding current yem

There are no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment bemy received i cash, allotted as fully paid up by wav of bonus issue. The Company hias not bought back shares during the

last five years

DLSL became the Holdmg Company of the Company with effect from March 20, 2020

Emplovee Stock Opnon Schemies: [Refer Note - 34|




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounis in Rs lakhs unless siated otherwise)

Note - 17
Other equity As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Share based payments reserve 311 9.45
Retained earnings (10,412.22) (12,032.88)
Other component of equity 491 491
(10,404& uéou.sz;

(a) Share based payments reserve
The share based payment reserve is used to record the value of equity-sentled share based pay transactions with employees. The amounts recorded in share based payment reserve are

transferred to share premium/retained earnings upon exercise of stock options by employees.

(b) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the accumulated profits earned by the Company till date, less transfer to general reserves, dividend (including dividend distribution tax) and other distributions made to the
shareholders.

(c) Other reserves
Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans are recognized in other comprehensive income (net of taxes), and presented within equity in other reserves.

(¢) Other component of equity
Other component of equity represents amounts transferred from share based payments reserve upon exercise of stock options by employees during the year.

Note - 18

Provisions - Non Current As at As at
__31March2024 31 March2023 _

Provision for employee benefits

Prowvision for gratuity 5.07 57.19
Provision for comp d ab 0.73 10.76
EISIJ 67.95
Note - 19
Borrowings - Current As at As at
31 March 2024 31 M 2023

Unsecured loans
Inter corporate deposits
From Ultimate Holding Company - 15.00

- 15.00
—

Unsecured loan from the Ultimate Holding Company is repayable at any time at the option of the Company and carries interest payable at the rate of 8.25% per annum calculated on daily
outstanding balances. There is no default in the repayment of the loan or interest at the balance sheet date

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities can be ¢lassified as follows:-

Short term
S Total
borrowings
As at 1 April 2022 . -
Cash flows:
Repayment (8,025.00) (8,025.00)
Proceeds 8,040.00 8,040.00
As at 31 March 2023 15.00 15.00
As at 1 April 2023 15.00 15.00
Cash flows
Repayment (15.00) (15.00)
Proceeds = 2
As at 31 March 2024 A -
Note - 20
Other current liabilities As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory dues payables 2.21 1.87
Employee related payables 19.14 26.85
Expenses and other payables 99.20 83.03
120.55 11175
Note - 21
Pravisions-current As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 0.13 1.54
Provision for comp d ab 0.02 0.29
0.15 1.83




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note - 22
Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Commission. brokerage and service income

Reconciliation of revenue from contracts with customers with revenue from

as above:

Commission, brokerage and service income

Revenue from contracts as per contract price:

Adjustments made to contract price on account of:

a) Financing component included in revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers as per Statement of
Profit and Loss

Note - 23
Net gain on derecognition of financial assets

Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets at amortized cost

Note - 24
Other income

Interest income from inter-corporate deposits
Interest on fixed deposits

Excess provisions written back
Miscellaneous Income

Unwinding of interest income

Interest income from Income Tax Refund
Profit on sale/ scrapping of fixed assets

Note - 25
Employee benefits expense

Salaries

Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Gratuity and Compensated Absences

Employee share-based payment/ Stock appreciation rights (credit)/expense

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

170.25

290.01

170.25

290.01

31 March 2024

170.25

170.25

For the year ended
31 March 2024

31 March 2023

290.01

290.01

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1.71

0.54

1.71

0.54

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1.495.97 1.463.16
1.06 12.78
55 55.46

2 1.78
162.69 17530
7.88 4.13
0.17 -
1,673.32 1,713.01

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

111.49 201.38
0.32 0.52
0.02 0.02

(3.81) 9.39
- (18.97)
108.02 282.34




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note - 26
Finance costs

Interest on bank overdrafi

Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits
Interest on vehicle loans

Interest on taxes

Note - 27
Impairment losses

Provision for impairment loss due to expected credit loss

Bad debts written oft/ credit notes issued
Less: Adjusted against provisions

Note - 28
Other expenses

Stamp duty

Software expenses

Service Charges

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Legal and professional

Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery

Repairs and maintenance - others
Business promotion

Auditor's remuneration-As auditor
Loss on sale/ scrapping of fixed assets
Bank Charges

*Remuneration to auditors comprises of:
Statutory audit fees
Tax audit fees*

* included in Legal and professional expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

. 0.92
0.16 -

= 0.01
0.01 -
0.17 0.93

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

40.12 1.200.00
48.98 662.43
(40.12) (662.43)
48.98 1,200.00

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

0.05 0.09
- 0.18
- 30.76
7.05 2.10
0.04 -
18.92 20.90
0.97 1.02
- 0.26
0.09 0.10
- 0.85
3.00 3.00
= 7.99
0.14 0.24
30.26 67.49
3.00 3.00
175 1.50
4.75 4.50




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note - 29

Tax expenses For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Current tax - -

Deferred tax (credit)/expense 51.80 (77:71)

Income tax (credit)/expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 51.80 (77.71)

The major components of tax expense and its reconciliation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the

Company is 25.168% (Previous year: 25.168%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Accounting profit before tax expense 1.646.58 438.04
Income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Expected tax expense 414.41 110.25

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense with reported
income tax €xpense

Tax effect on items exempt under income tax - 90.93
Tax effect of expenses which will never be allowed - (4.77)
Tax effect for adjustment of carry forward losses (362.23) (185.59)
Others (0.38) (10.82)
Deferred tax effect on temporary differences - (77.71)
Income tax (credit)/expenses recognized in the statement of profit & loss 51.80 (77.71)
Note - 30

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the period by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting vear. Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average
number of equity shares and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually

issued at fair value.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a later date. The
number of equity shares and potential diluted equity shares are adjusted for stock split, bonus shares and the potential dilutive effect of
emplovee stock option plan as appropriate.

For the vear ended For the vear ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net Profit(Loss) for the year from continuing operations 1,594.78 515.75
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS 35.55.00.000 35.55.00.000
Basic earning per share (Rs.) 045 Q:15
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for computation of Diluted EPS 35,55.00.000 35.55.00,000

Diluted earning per share (Rs.) 0.45 0.15




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwisel

Note - 31
Financial instruments
A Financial assets and liabilities
The carrving amounts of financial mstruments by category are as follows.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Loans 21.827.21 19.693 38
Trade receivables 980.21 1.010.0]
Cash and cash equivalents 10.71 12.00
Other financial assels 73717 1,050.39
Total 23,555.30 21,765.78

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Borrowings (other than debt securities but including interest accrued) - 15.00

Total - 15.00

B Fair values hierarchy
As per Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instruments; Disclosures’, the fair values of the financral assets or financial habilities are defined as the price that
would be received on sale of asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement date
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three Levels of a fair value
hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or
unobservable. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement. as follows

The categories used are as follows

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market:

Level 2: Directly (1.e. as prices) or indirectly (1.e, derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level | inputs; and
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

B.1 Fair value of instruments measured at amortized cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortized cost for which fair value 15 disclosed is as tollows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3
nputs:

y As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Particulars - - — - - -
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets
Loans 21,827 21 21,827.21 19.693 38 19,693 38
Trade receivables 980 21 980.21 1.010.01 1,010,01
Cash and cash equivalents 10.71 10.71 12.00 12.00
Other financial assets 737.17 737.17 1.050.39 1.050 39
Total 23.555.30 23,555.30 21.765.78 21.765.78
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - - 13.00 15,00
Total - - 15.00 15.00

Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables. loans and other financial assets approximate their carrying amounts largely due to current
maturities of these instruments. Accordingly, fair value hierarchy for these financial instruments have not been presented above Fair value
measurement of lease Liabilities is not required. Valuation techniques used to determine faur values are given below;

(1) The fair values of the Company’s fixed interest bearing loans and receivables are determined by applying discounted cash flows ('DCF") method.
using discount rate that reflects the 1ssuer s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance nisk as at 31 March 2023
was assessed to be msignificant

(1i) The fair values of the Company fixed rate interest-bearing debt securities and borrowings are determined by applving discounted cash flows
(*DCF’) method, using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period The Company did not have any
variable rate interest-bearing debt securities / borrowings,
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note - 32
Financial risk management

Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose 1t to market risk, liquidity risk and credit nisk. The Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of
financial markets and seck to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance The Company's Board of Directors has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company risk management framework The Company's risk are managed by a treasury
department under policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides witten principles for overall risk management This
note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact i the financial
statements.

Risk Exposure arising from

Credit nisk Cash and cash equivalents, loans, trade and other receivables and other
linancial assets

Liquicty risk Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Market risk - Borrowings

interest rate

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures mclude specific guidelines to focus on maintaming a
diversified porttolio. Identified concentrations of credit nisks are controlled and managed accordingly

A) Credit risk

Credit risk 1s the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure 1o credit nisk is influenced mainly
by cash and cash equivalents. investments. loan assets, trade receivables and other financial assets The Company continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into 1ts credit nisk controls

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk**: The carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum amount of credit exposure
The maximum exposure to credit nisk s as per the table below, it being total of carrving amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
other financial assets measured at amortis

Particulars

As at Asat
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

(1) Low eredit risk

Loans 21,827.21 19,693 38
Cash and cash equivalents 10.71 12.00
Trade receivables 980 .21 1.010.01
Onther financial assets 73717 1.050 39

(1 High credit risk
Trade recevables

2 0 74
Other financial assets 2848 84

788

d
L
- =
-
-
12 13
o0
o~

* These represent gross carrving values of financial assets. without deduction for expected credit losses

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on Financial Assets

The Company continuously momitors all financial assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument 1s subject o 12 month ECL
(12ZmECL) or hite tme ECL (LTECL). the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk or the asset has become
credit impared since initial recognition. The Company applies following quantitative and qualitative eritena to assess whether there 15 significant
increase in credit nisk or the asset has been credit impanred.

= Historical trend of collection from counterparty

= Company's contractual nghts with respect to recovery of dues from counterparty

- Credit rating of counterparty and any relevant information available in public domain

Trade and other receivables:

Exposures to customers™ outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit
losses. Historical trends of collection from counterparties on tmely basis reflects low level of credit risk. As the Company has a contractual right to
such recevables as well as the control over such funds due from customers. the Company does not estimate any credit nisk in relation to such
receivables Further, management believes that the umimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 180 days are still collectible in full. based on
istorical pavment behaviour.

Chartered \O

i
Accountants | .
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Note - 32 (continued):
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The credit worthiness of such banks and fnancial institutions with whom cash and cash equivalents are held is evaluated by the management on an

ongoing basis and 1s considered to be high

Loans
Loans measured at amortized cost primarily comprise security deposits given for underwriting projects. Credit nisk related to these other financial
assets is managed by momitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously

Other financial assets
Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes interest recevable  Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by

monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously

-

Credit risk management

For banks and financial msututions, only high rates banks/financial institutions are accepted. The Company assesses and manages credit nsk based
on nternal credit rating system. Internal credit rating 15 performed for each class of financial nstruments with different characteristics The
Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions. nputs and factors specific to the class of

financial assets

(1 Low credit nsk
(1) Moderate crednt risk
(111) High credit nisk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Nature Assets covered

Basis of expected credit loss

Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents and loans

12 month expected credit loss

Loans, Trade and other receivables and other financial

assels

High credit risk

Life ume expected credit loss or fully provided for

Based on business environment in which the Company operates. a default on a financial asset 1s considered when the counter party fails to make
payments within the agreed time period as per contract Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering

dulferences between current and historical economic conditions.

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are
written off and attempls to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognized in statement of profit and loss

by Credit risk exposure
i) Expected credit losses for financial assets

o Carrying
Estimated gross | i S
Asat 31 March 2024 carrying Expected credit n‘mum?l net of
) losses impairment
amount L

provision
Cash and cash equivalents 10.71 - 1071
Loans 2182721 - 2182721
Trade receivables 3 339 98 235977 98021
Other financial assets 3.586.01 2,848 84 73717

e Carrving

Estimated gross| : ;
Asat 31 March 2023 carrying Expected credit afnum!l net of
d lusses impairment
amount R

provision
Cash and cash equivalents 12.00 - 12.00
Loans 19,693 38 - 19.693 .38
Trade receivables 3,38075 2,370.74 1.010.01
Other financial assets 3,888 27 2,837 88 1.050.39
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Note 32 (continued):
Reconciliation of Provision for impairment losses under expected credit loss™:

Reconciliation of Provision for impairment losses Trade Other financial
under expected credit loss: receivables assets
Loss allowance on 1 April 2022 237226 2298 78
Impairment loss recognized during the vear 660 90 539.10
Adjusted against Bad debts written off / credit notes 1ssued (662.43) -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 2,370.74 2,837.88
Loss allowance on 1 April 2023 2,370.74 2,837.88
Impairment loss recognized during the vear 29.15 10.96
Adjusted against Bad debts written oft' / credit notes issued (40.13) -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 2,359.77 2.848.84

As aforesaid. the Company has recorded provisions for impairment due to expected credit losses on certain financial assets as at March 31, 2024 on
an estimated basis. in respect of losses that may arise dependent upon future developments including inter ahia. the uncertanties due to the effects of’
unravelling of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Company’s business There has been no matenial change in the controls or processes followed in the
closing of these financial statements of the Company.

The expected credit loss allowance above is calculated based on assumptions about the risk of default and expected loss rates, The Company uses
Judgement in making those assumptions and selecting inputs to the loss allowance calculation, based on past history, existing conditions, as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period

Concentration of trade receivables

The Company carries on the business of underwriting/distribution of real estate projects on behalf of developers and related consultancy services
The Company’s outstanding receivables are for commission recevable from underwnting/distribution of real estate projects on behalf of developers
and related services. Loans and other financial assets majorly represents loans to related parties and deposits given for business purposes

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty i meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liguidity 1s to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liguidity to meet its iabilities when they are due.

The Company maintains flexability in funding by mamtaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors the Company's
liquidity positions (also comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Company also takes into account hiquidity of the market in which the entity operates

Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following funding facilities:

As at 31 March 2024 Total facility Drawn Undrawn
- Expiring within one vear - - -
- Expiring bevond one vear 75,000.00 - 75.000.00
Total T5,000.00 - T75,000.00
Asat 31 March 2023 Total facility Drawn Undrawn
- Expiring within one vear 270.00 - 270.00
- Expiring bevond one year 73,000.00 15.00 7498500
Total 75,270.00 15.00 75,255.00




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in Rs lakhs unless stated otherwise)
Note 32 (continued):
(ii) Maturities of financial assets and liabilities
The 1ables below analyze the Company financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears M“:::t:n 3 Total
Non-derivatives

Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 10.71 - - - 10.71
Trade receivables 2.489.11 850,87 - - 333998
Loans 19,853.75 214955 - - 22,003.30
Other financial assets 1.879.34 1, 706,67 - - 358601
Total undi ted financial assels 24,232.91 4.707.09 - - 28.940.00
Non-derivatives

Borrowings other than debt securities = = - " =
Other financial habilines - & - i 5
Total undiscounted financial liabilities - - - - -
Net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 24,232.91 4.707.09 - - 28.940.00
As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears \lm“::l:n 3 Total
Non-derivatives

Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 12.00 - - - 12.00
Trade receivables 1.963.08 1.207 60 210,07 = 3.380.75
Loans 17.881 66 165117 48697 - 20.019.80
Other financial assets 1,304 67 246013 123 47 - 388827
Total undiscounted financial assets 21,161.41 5318.90 820,51 - 27.300.82
Non-derivatives

Borrowings other than debt securities 15.00 - - - 15.00
Total undiscounted financial liabiliti 15.00 - - - 15.00
Net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 21,146.41 5,318.90 820.51 - 27,285.82

) Market risk
Market risk 15 the risk of loss of future earmings. fair values or tuture cash flows related to financial nstrument that may result from adverse changes
in market rates and prices (such as foreign exchange rates. interest rates, other prices) The Company is exposed to market risk primanly related o
interest rate nisk and price nsk

a) Foreign currency risk
The Company does not have into any foreign currency denominated assets or laiblities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 Accordingly, the
Company s not exposed 10 foreign currency risk

b) Interest rate risk

i) Liabilities
Interest rate nisk is the nsk where the Company 15 exposed to the nsk that fawr value or future cash fows of its financial instruments will fluctuate as a
result of change i market interest rates. The Company’s policy is to mimimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing At 31
March 2024 and as at 31 March 2023, the Company 1s exposed to changes in market interest rates through borrowings

Interest rate risk exposnre
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk

As at
31 March 2024

As at

Particulars
31 March 2023

Variable rate borrowings - -
Fixed rate borrowings . -
Total = 5
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ii)

)

Note 32 (continued):

Sensttivity
Below s the sensitivity of profit or loss in interest rates.

As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

Interest sensitivity*
Interest rates — increase by 50 basis points (50 bps) 001 0,00
Interest rates — decrease by 50 basis points (30 bps) (0.01) (000w

* Holding all other variables constant
Hdmount is less than five Hundred

Assets
The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortized cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to mterest rate risk as defined
in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrving amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change  market interest rates

Price risk

Exposure

The Company’s exposure price risk arises from mvestments held and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through other comprehensive
income or at fair value through profit or loss. To manage the price risk anising from nvestments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets. The
Company does not have any financial assets as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 that expose 1t to price risk.

Note - 33

Capital management

The Company’s capital management objectives are

-t ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

- to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrving amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to mamntain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive
leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlving assets In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders. 1ssue new shares,

or sell assets o reduce debt

Particulars i S

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Net debt* - 3.00
Total equity 25,145.80 23.531.48
Net debt to equity ratio - 0.0001

* Net debt includes debt securities + borrowings other than debt securities + interest accrued - cash and cash equivalents

(This space has intentionally been lefi blank)
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Note 34
Employee stock option schemes:

A. Employee stock option plans/ stock appreciation rights

Dham Services Linuted ("The Ulumate Holding Company”) has issued vanous Employees stock options scheme (ESOP [/ ESOS) for the benefit of its employees and its subsidiary

companies.

The Ultimate Holding Company has established the “Udaan Employee Welfare Trust” (“Udaan — EWT™) ("Trust") for the implementation and management of its employees benefit
scheme viz. the “Dham Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme — 2008 & 20097 (Scheme) for the benefit of the employees of The Ulumate Holding Company and its

subsidiaries.

1. Grants during the vear:
There have been no new grants dunng the year ( Previous year 1.16.00.000 shares).

1. Employees Stock Options Schemes:
(i) Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2008 (DSL ESOP - 2008)

DSL ESOP - 2008

Total options under the scheme (Nos.) 2,00,00.0060

Options granted (Nos. ) 97,00,000 8,850,600 18.00,000 18,00,000
(Regrant) (Regrant) (Regrant) (Regrant)
Five vears. Five years, Five vears, Five vears.

Vesting period and percentage
B pe = 20% each vear

2nd July cach year,
commencing

Vesting date
2 July 2017

5 years from each

Exercisable period vesting date

Exercise price (%) 24.15
(4] ling at the begi of 1 April 2022 (Nos.) 45,94,800
Granted’ regranted during the vear (Nos. | =

Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 530400
22.00,000

Exercised during the year (Nos. )
Surrendered and eligible for re-gramt during the vear (Nos,) =

Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos,) 18,44,400
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos ) 18.44.400
Remaining contractual life tweighted months) 30
Ouitstanding at the beginning of | April 2023 (Nos.) 18.,44,400

Granted' regranted during the year (Nos.) -
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 6.94 400
Exercised duning the vear (Nos.) -
Swrrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.) »
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos,) 1150000
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos. ) 1130000

Remaining contractual lite tweighted months) 19

Weighted average exercise price of shares during the year ended 31 March 2024 Now Applicable (31 March 2023

20% each year

25" March each year,
commencing 25
March 2019
5 years from each
vesting date
254 85
27,400

27400

Not Applicable ),

20%% each vear 20% each year
i 1
28" June each vear, 25" February each
commencing 28 June  year, commencing 25
2023 February 2023
5 years from each
vesting date

$ vears from each
vesting date

a0 68

2 18.00,000
18.00.000 -

- 18.,00,000
18,00,000 -
87 =
18,00,000 -
900,000 -
9,00,000 -
1.80,000 -

75 =

Chartered

ot
Accountants |y,
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Note 34 (continued ):

(1i) Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2009 (DSL - ESOP 2009)

Total options under the Scheme (Nos, )
Options granted (Nos. )

Vesting period and percemtage

Vesting date

Exercisable penod

Exercise price (¥)

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 (Nos,)
Granted! regranted during the year (Nos )

Forferted duning the year (Nos )

Exercised during the year (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos. )

Surrendered and ehgible for re-grant during the year (Nos,)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.)
Remamng contractual life { Weighted Months)
Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos.)
Granted! regranted during the year (Nos. )

Forfeited during the vear (Nos.)

Exercised during the vear (Nos )

Expired during the year (Nos,)

Surrendered and ehigible for re-grant during the year (Nos.)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.)
Remaining contractual life ( Weighted Months)

Total options under the Scheme (Nos. )
Options granted (Nos. )

Vesting perod and percentage

Vesting date

Exercisable penod

Exercise pnice 13)

Outstandi of 1 April 2022 (Nos.)
Granted: regranted during the year (Nos.)

Forteited during the year (Nos.)

Exercised during the year {Nos,)

o at the |

Expired during the year (Nos, )

Surrendered and ehigible for re=grant during the year (Nos.)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.)
Remaming contractual hfe ( Weighted Months)

Ourstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos.)
Granted! regranted during the year (Nos, )

Forfeited during the year (Nos.)

Exercised during the year (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos.)

Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos, )
Ourstanding as ar 31 March 2024 (Nos,)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.)

Remaining contractual hie (Weighted Months)

DSL ESOP - 2009
2,00,00,000
20,50,000 95,00,000 98.00,000 1,00,00,000
(Regrant) (Regrant) (Regrant)
Ten years. Five vears, Five vears, Five vears,

13" April each vear,
commencing 13 April
2011
3 vears from each
vesting date

X125

50,000

50,000
50,000

24
50,000
30,000

0,000
12

Weighted average exercise price of share during the vear ended 31 March 2024: M1 {31 March 2023, N}

13" May each vear,
commencing
13 May 2017

5 years from each
vesting date

16

25,001,600

7.11.200
1790400
1790 400

31
1790400
1.62.000

16.28.400
1628400
19

28" June each vear,
commencing 28 June
2023
5 yvears from each
vesting date

30

98.00.000

98,00,000

87
98,00,000
41.00.000

57.00.000
1 1.40.000
7.<]

2™ September each
year, commencing
2 September 2018
5 years from each
vesting date

219.65

12.96.800
12.96.800

DSL ESOP - 2009

2.00.00.000
98.00,000
(Regrant)
Five years,
20% each vear

25" February each

2.00.00.000
84.00.000
(Regrant)
Five vears,
20% each vear

01" April each vear,

vear. commencing 25 commencing 01 Apnl

February 2023
S years from each
vesting date
68.00

98.00.000
98.00,000

Chartered

Accountants

2022
3 years from each
vesting date
130.00
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Note 34 (continued ):
(iii} Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2019 (*Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 2019™),

The Sc:hcml: has been adopted and approved pursuant to. (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Ulumate Holding Company at its meeting held on 22 October 2019; and (b)
a I resol of the shareholders’ of the Ul Holding Company passed through postal ballot on 4 December 2019, result of which were declared on § December 2019

L

This Scheme comprises:

a. Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (“ESOP Plan 20197)

b.  Dham Services Linuted Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2019 (“ESP Plan 20197}

¢ Dham Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2019 ("SARs Plan 20197}

In accordance with the Secunities and Exchange Board of India (Share aned Employee Benefits) Regul . 2014 (the "SBEB Regulations™), the Ulumate Holding Company has set
up "Udaan - Employee Welfare Trust” ("Trust”) for the purpose of on of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes as aforesaid. The Trust, in compliance

m1h the "SBEB Regulations™, 1s authonsed te pun:hase upto an agp:ﬂ.alc of 10,500,000 (One Crore Five lakh) fully pad-up equity shares. being not more than 2% (Two percent) of

the fully paid-up equity share capital of the Ulimate Holding Company as on the date of approval of shareholders. from the secondary market. The Ultimate Holding Company has

appropriated 10,400,000 fully pad up equity shares purchased by the Trust under the Scheme.

Note 34 (continued ):

DSL-ESBS 2019
Total opuons under the Scheme (Nos.) 1,05,00,000
Options granted (Nos. ) 1.04 00,000
Vestng peniod and percentage Three vears,

33.33% each vear
Vesting date 17" August each

vear, commencing |7
August 2021

5 vears from each
Exercisable penod = vesting date
Exercise price (1) 250
O ling at the beginning of | April 2022 (Nos.) LO4,00.,000
Granted during the vear (Nos.) -
Forfeited dunng the year (Nos.) =
Exercised durmg the year (Nos ) -
Expired durmg the vear (Nos.) -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the vear (Nos ) 1.04,00,000
Ourtstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) .
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) .
Remaming contractual hfe { Weighted Months) .
[ ding at the beginning of | April 2023 (Nos.) »
Granted duning the year (Nos ) -
Forfeited during the year (Nos ) -
Exercised dunng the year (Nos. ) -

Expired during the year (Nos ) -
Surrendered during the year (Nos.) =
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) =
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) -
Remaming convractual e ( Weighted Months) -
Note 34 (continued ):

tiv) Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2020 (“Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 20207,

The S..hcnw has been adopted and app;med pursuant to. (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Ulumate Holding Company at its meeting held on 23 January 2020; and (b)a
I I of the shareholders’ of the Ultimate Holding Company passed through postal ballot on 20 March 2020 result of which were declared on 21 March 2020

T

This Scheme compnises
a  Dhami Services Limited Employees Stock Option Plan 2020 (“ESOP Plan 20207)
b, Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2020 (“ESP Plan 20207)

¢ Dhani Services Linited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2020 ("S ARs Plan 20207

Inaccordance with the Secunities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulauons, 2014 (the “SBEB Regulations”). the Ultimate Holding Company has set
up "Udaan - Employees Welfare Trust” (Trust) for the puspose of implementation of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes as aforesaid The Trust, in compliance with
the “SBEB Regulations™, is authonsed to purchase upto an aggregate of 9300000 (Ninety Three lakh) fully paid-up equity shares. being not more than 2% ( Twao percent) of the fully
pad-up equity share capital of the Ultimate Holding Company as on the date of approval of shareholders. from the secondary market. The Ulimate Holding Company has appropnated
93.00.000 fully pard up equity shares of the Ultimate Holding Company purchased by the Trust under the Scheme
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Note 34 (continued ):
DSL-ESBS 2020
Total options under the Scheme (Nos.) 93.00.000
Options granted (Nos.) 93.00.000
Vesting penod and percentage Three vears,
33.33% cach vear
Vesung date ™ Apnil each year,
commencing 7 Apnl
2021

3 years from each

Exercisable period vesting date

Exercise price (%) 250
Outstanding as at 1 April 2022 93,00,000
Granted regranted during the year =
Exercised during the year (Nos.) -
Expured duning the year (Nos.) .
Surrendered and eligable for re-grant 93,100,000
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 -
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos ) %
Remaming contractual life ( Weighted Months) =
Remaming contractual hife ( Weighted Months) -
Outstanding as at 1 April 2023 -
Granted regranted duning the year .
Exercised duning the vear (Nos ) =
Expired dunng the vear (Nos. ) =
Surrendered duning the year (Nos ) -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 2
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos. ) -
R ing contractual life { Weighted Months) %
Remaming contractual life (Weighted Months) -
Note 34 (continued ):

(v) Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2021 (“Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 2021"),

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant 1o (a) a resolution of the Board of Durectors of the Ulumate Holding Company at s g held on 06 March 2021, and (b)a

special lution of the shareholders” of the Ultimate Holding Company passed through postal ballot on 15 April 2021, result of which were declared on 16 Apni 2021

Thus Scheme compnises:

a  Dham Services Limited Emplovees Stock Opnion Plan 2021 (“ESOP Plan 20217}
b.  Dham Services Limuted Emplovees Stock Purchase Plan 2021 (“ESP Plan 20217)
¢ Dham Services Limuted Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2021 ¢"SARs Plan 202171

In accordance with the Secunities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulanons, 2014 (the "SBEB Regulations”), the Ulimate Holding Company has set
up "Udaan - Employees Welfare Trust™ { Trust) for the purpose of impl on of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes as aforesaid. The Trust, in compliance with
the "SBEB Regulations™. is authonsed to purchase upto an agl.lq..llc of 10500000 (One Crore Five lakh) fully paid-up equity shares. being not more than 2% (Two percent) of the
fully paid-up equity share capital of the Ulumate Holling Company as on the date of approval of sharcholders. from the secondary market. The Ulumate Holding Company has not

pranted any options’ SARs under the smd Scheme as at 31 March 2024

1L Fair Valuation:
The details of the Fair value of the options ' SARs as determined by an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants, for the respective plans using the Black-Scholes Merton
Opuon Pricmg Model-
DSL ESOP - 2008

97,00,000 8.80,600 18,00,000
Options Regranted Options Options
1. Easivise prce (2) 24.15 25485 G800
2 Expected volauliny * 4297% 47.15% 69 05%
3 Opuion Life (Weighted Average) (i vears) 6 6 6
4. Expected Dividends vield 10.82% 1.10% 1.01%
5 Risk Free Interest rate 7 45% 7 56% 5 50%

6 Fair value of the options (%) 431 130,08 34 58
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Note 34 (continued ):
DSL ESOP - 2009
20,50,000 95,00,000 1,00,00,000
Options Options Options
1. Exercise price (2) 3135 16 219.65
2. Expected volatlity * 48.90% 40.74% 46.70%
3. Expected forfeture p ee on each ing date Nil Nil Nil
4. Expected dividends yield 6 86% 16.33% 1.27%
5. Risk free interest rate 8.05% 7.45% 6.54%
6 Fair value of the options (¥) 939 1 38 10631
* The expected volaulity was deternuned based on lustoncal volaulity data
DSL ESOP - 2009 DSL-ESBS 2020 DSL-ESBS 2019
98,00,000 93,00,000 1,04,00,000
Options SARs SARs
I, Exercise price (2) 68 250 250
2. Expected volauhty * 69.05% 76.57% 68.43%
3. Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date 6 Nl Nil
4. Expected dividends yvield 1.01% 1.26% 1.71%
5. Rusk free mterest rate 5.50% 4.36% 4.17%
6. Fair value of the options (2} 3458 65 82 5549
* The expected volaulity was determined based on histoncal volaulity data
DSL ESOP - 2008 & 2009
18,00,000 and 98,00,000
Options
1. Vesting Date 28-Jun-23 28-Jun-24 28-Jun-25 28-Jun-26 28-Jun-17
2. Exercise price () 30 30 20 30 30
3. Expected volanhty * 70.92% 68.20% 06.66% 65399 63,.19%
4. Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
5. Expected dividends yield 0.66% 0.66%% 0.66% R 0.66%
6. Rusk free interest rate 6.70% 6 87% H97% 7.05% 7.09%
7. Fair value of the options (¥) 15.69 17.00 18.15 19.09 1969
8. Average Price 17.92
* The expected volatlity was determuned based on histoncal volathity data
* The expected volanlity was determuned based on histonical volanlity data
DSL ESOP - 2008 & 2009
18.00,000 and 98,00,000
Options
L Vesting Date 28-Jun-23 28-Jun-24 28-Jun-25 28-Jun-26 28-Jun-17
2 Exercise price (2) a0 30 30 0 30
3. Expected volanliny * T0.92% 68.20% 0h.66% 65,390, 63.19%
4. Expected forfeiure percentage Nl Nil Nil Nil Nil
5 Expected dividends vield 0 66%a 0.66% 066" 0 s 0 6%
6 Risk free interest rate 6.70% 6.87% £.979, 708, 7.09%
Fair value of the options (%) 15.69 17.00 18.15 19 049 19 69
8 Average Price 17.92

* The expected volaulity was deternuned based on lustoncal volathity data
pe ) )

IV, Share based payvment expense:

The Company has recogmsed share based payments (reverse ) expense in the Statement of Profit and loss as follows

For the year
ended March 31,
2024

For the vear
ended March 31,
2023

Share based payments expense / (reversal) -

(1897)

(18.97)
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Note - 35

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Provident fund

The Company pays fixed contribution to /dendent fund at predetermined rates to a registered /dendent fund admmistered by the Government of India.
which invests the funds in permitted securities. Both the Company and employees make predetermined contributions to the /dendent Fund. The
contributions are normally based on a certain proportion of the emplovee's salary. During the vear. the Company has recognized the following amounts

in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of defined contribution plans and included in "Employee benefits expense”.

Pariicati Year ended
articulars

31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Employer's Contribution made to:

(1) emplovees’ provident fund organmisation 0.32 0.51
(1) emplovees’ state msurance corporation - -

(11i) labour welfare fund 0.00 0.002
Total 0.32 0.52

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity (unfunded)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, The
liability of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit
hability/(asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income and not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Risks associated with plan provisions

Salary increases ; S
k also increase the labihty.

Actual salary increases will ncrease the Plan’s ability. Increase in salary merease rate assumption i future valuations will

Mscount rate

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability

Mortality & disability

Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the habilities.

Withdrawals s L
valuations can impact Plan’s hability

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

Amount recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obligation 5.20 5873
Fair value of plan assets = =
Net obligation recognized in balance sheet as provision 5.20 58.73
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
Patticaliss Y ear ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 139 3198
Past service cost including curtailment gamns/losses - 5
Gains or Losses on Non routine settlements - =
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 3.65 541
Interest income on plan assets . -
Net impact on profit (before tax) 5.04 9.39
Actuanal (gain)loss recognized during the vear {26.11) (3.16)
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income (21.07) 6.23
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(iii) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Nate - 35 - Employee benefits (continued)

Paiticildrs Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 Muarch 2023

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 58.73 87.66
Acquisition adjustment (net) (8.93) -
Current service cost 1.39 398
Interest cost 365 541
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - .
Benefits paid (23.53) (35.16)
Actuanal loss/(gain) on obligation

Actuanal (gain)/loss on anising from change in demographic assumption - :

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption 021 (1.58)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on anising from experience adjustment (26.32) (1.58)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 5.20 58.73
Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets):

Asat Asat

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Government of India Securities
State Government securities

High Quality Corporate Bonds
Equity Shares of listed companies
Property

Funds Managed by Insurer

Bank Balance

Total

Movement in the plan assets recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets

Emplover's contribution

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the vear

Actuarial assumptions

T Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discounting rate 71.22% 7.36%
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (vears) 60.00 60.00
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 yvears 3% 3%

From 31 to 44 vears 2% 2%

Above 44 vears 1% 1%
Weighted average duration 8.16 16.28

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012 -14)

Gratuity is payable to the employees on death or resignation or on retirement at the attainment of superannuation age. To provide for these

eventualities, the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultmate table
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(vii)

(viii)

Note - 35 - Employee benefits (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

. Year ended Year ended
AR . 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 520 5873
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (0.19) (3.77)
- Impact due 1o decrease of .50 % 0.21 411
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 520 5873
- Impact due o increase of 0.50 % 021 418
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 10.20) (3.87)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these s not calculated
Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change 1t is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the method (Projected Unit Credit Method) used to calculate the liability recognized in the
balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the
previous period

Asat Asat
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Y ears

Oto | year 0.13 1.54
1 to 2 year 2.51 108
210 3 vear 0.03 311
3104 vear 0.03 0.85
4 1o 5 year 0.03 082
510 6 vear 0.04 0.82
6 year onwards 243 3051

The employer best estimate of contributions expected to be paid during the annual period beginning after the Balance Sheet date. towards Gratuity is
Rs. 0.65 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 8.60 lakhs)

Compensated absences (non-funded)
Provision for unfunded compensated absences for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial vear, Major
drivers in actuarial assumptions, tvpically, are vears of service and employee compensation. Commitments are actuarially determined using the

“Projected Unit Credit” Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial assumptions are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Risks associated with plan provisions

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will

Salary increases
. also increase the habiliy

Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability

Mortality & disability Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

Withdrawals ; ; SR
! valuations can impact Plan’s lability
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Note - 35 - Employee benefits (continued)

Amount recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obligation 0.75 11.05
Fair value of plan assets = -
Net obligation recognized in balance sheet as provision 0.73 11.05
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
Particuinrs Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 0.34 117
Total Actarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation (9.92) (10.97)
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 0.73 (.92
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss {8.85) (8.88)
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
Paiiiealais Y ear ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 11.05 19.93
Acquisition adjustment- (net) (1.45) -
Current service cost 0.34 1.17
Interest cost 0.73 092
Past service cost including curtarlment gains/losses - =~
Benefits paid - =
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arnising from change i demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption 0.03 (0.33)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from experience adjustment (9.97) {10.64)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the vear 0.75 11.05
Actuarial assumptions
Pivilentics Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discounting rate 7.22% 7.36%
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (years) 60.00 60.00
Weighted average duration of PBO 816 16.28
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 to 44 vears 2 (0% 2.00%
Above 44 vears 1.00% 1.00%
Leave
Leave availment rate 5.00% 5.00%
Leave lapse rate while in service Nil Wil
Leave lapse rate on exit Nil Wil
Leave encashment rate while i service Mil Nil

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability =100% of TALM (2012 —14)[Previous vear 100% of

TALM (2012 - 14)]
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(v)

(i)

Note - 35 - Employee benefits (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences

Beialiaitare Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 073 11.05
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (0.03) (0.76)
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.03 0.81
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 0.75 1105
- Impact due to increase of .50 % 003 0.83
- Impact due to decrease of 0 50 % (003) (0.77)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these is not calculated

Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable.

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption. the method (Projected Umit Credit Method) used to calculate the Lability recognized in the
balance sheet has been apphied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the
previous period.

Asat Asat

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
vears

0to | vear 002 0.29
1 1o 2 vear 036 0.21
210 3 year - 0.50
3 to 4 year - 0.17
410 5 year 001 016
510 6 vear 0.1 0.16
6 year onwards 0.35 9.56

The employer best estimaie of contributions expected to be paid during the annual period beginning afier the Balance Sheet date. towards compensated
absences is Rs. 0.09 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 1.72 lakhs)

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund
and Gratuity. The Mimstry of Labour and Employment has released drafi rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020 and has
invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation
once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective and the
related rules to determine the financial impact are published

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Note - 36

As per the best estimate of the management, no provision is required to be made as per Indian Accounting Standard 37 (Ind AS 37) - Provisions. Contingent Liabilines and
Contingent Assets as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) in respect of any present obligation as a result of a past event that could lead to a probable outflow of resources, which would be required to settle the obligation

Note - 37
Figures for the previous vear have been regrouped! re-arranged wherever considered necessary 1o confirm 1o the figures presented in the current vear.

Note - 38
The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the vear. The Company does not have any foreign currency exposures as at 31 March 2024 (Previous vear Rs.

Nil)

Note - 39
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts on account of pendmg litigation: Rs, 57,07 lakhs (Previous vear. Rs, 57.07 lakhs).
The Company in the ordinary course of business, has various cases pending in different authorities and courts, however, the management does not expect any unfavourable

outcome resulting in material adverse effect on the financial position of the Company.

Note - 40

Capital ¢ out ding as a1 31 March 2024 Rs. Nil (Previous year Nil)

Note - 41

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amount (Rs,) Amount (Rs.)

(1) Principal amount remaining unpaid 1o any supplier as at the end of the accounting vear Nil Nil

(11} Interest due thereon remai unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting vear Nil Nil

(ii1) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier bevond the appointed day Nil Nil

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year Nil Nil

(v) The amount of interest accrued and 1 ing unpaid at the end of the accounting vear Nil Nil

(vi) The amount of further interest due and pavable even in the succeeding vear, until such date when the interest dues as
|above are actually paid Nil Nil

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available
with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors

Note - 42
There are no borrowing costs to be capitalized as at 31 March 2024 (Previous year, Rs, Nil)

Note - 43
Segment reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. "Underwriting/distribution of real estate projects on behalf of developers and related services”. which has similar risks
and returns for the purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operating segments™, 15 considered to be the only reportable business segment. The Company derives its revenues primarily from
underwniting distribution of real estate projects on behalf of developers and its customers across India. Further. the Company is operating in India which is considered as a single
geographical segment. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chiet operating decision maker (CODM}. The CODM's
function is to allocate the resources of the entity and assess the performance of the operating segment of the Company. All assets of the Company are domiciled in India
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Note - 44
Assets pledged as security

The carrving amounts of assets pledged/hypothecated as security are,

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Vehicles = -
Fixed deposits - 300,00
- 300.00

Total assets pledged as security

Note - 45

Disclosures in respect of Ind AS - 24 "Related Party Disclosures” as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act”) read together with the Compames (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)

(i) Details of related parties:

Nature of relationship

]Namcs of related parties

(1) Where control exists

Ultimate Holding Company

Dhani Services |

amited

Holding Company

Dham Loans and Services Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Company *

Dhani Healthcare Limited

Evinos Buildwell Limited

Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited

* with whom transactions have been entered into during the vear

(b) Significant Transactions with Related Parties during the year endel

Nature of Transactions

131 March 2024;

Entities under

Ultimate Holding

Nate: Figures i atalics relate to the previous vear

Holding Company : Total
common control & T, Company "
Finance
. s March 31, 202, 20.479.75 - : 20,479 75
Inter Corporate Deposit Given igtetyal 5 0% 24T
(Maximum Balance Owutstanding during the vear) _ §
March 31, 2023 17.870.25 - - 17.870.25
AN ch 31, 2024 - =
Inter Corporate Deposit Taken PAERGTS I 100 L
(Maximum Balance Owstanding during the year)
st March 31, 2023 . 2 15.00 15.00
Income » -
March 31, 2024 1,495.97 - - 1.495.97
Interest income on Inter Corporate Deposits
March 31, 2023 146316 - - 146316
Expenses E =
March 31, 2024 - 0160 0.160
Imerest expense on Inter Corporate Deposits
March 31, 2023 - - = -
(¢) Outstanding as at vear end:
- F Entities under i 3 i
Nature of Transaction UkimattHolding Total
common control Company
Finance Year
Asat 31 March
2k b 19.85375 - 19,853.75
Inter Corporate Deposits Given e
As at 31 March 17.870 75 7 870,75
2023 Shles . 1780
Asat 31 March
e e 2024 i ) ’
Inter Corporate Deposits Taken
Asat 31 March 15.00 g
5093 - 5 15.00
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(D) Detail of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties
Asat 31

March 2024

Asat3l M

arch 2023

Amount of Percentage to the
s loan or total Loans and Amaount of loan or Percentage to the total
kype of Bereower advance in the | Advances advance in the nature of  [Loans and Advances
nature of loan |in the nature of  [loan outstanding in the nature of loans
outstanding loans
Promaoter 0.00% = 0.00%
Directors 0.00% 0.00%
KMPs = 0.00% - 0.00%
Related parties 19,853.75 90.29% 17,870.25 89.26%

In accordance with Ind AS 24, disclosures in respect of transactions with identilied related parties are given only for such period during which such relationships existed, Related
Party relationships are given above are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors

Note - 46

As at March 31, 2023 the financial assets of the Company constitute more than fifty percent of its total assets (netted off by imtangible asseis) and income from financial assets

constitutes more than fifty percent of the gross income of the Company for the vear ended March 31, 2023 The management of the Company is of the view that the deplovment of

funds in certain financial assets in the nature of loans given by the Company does not represent the prnincipal business activities of the Company. Given the short term nature of

deployment of idle / surplus funds in such financial assets and the income ¢amed thereon. management 15 of the view that the requirements to obtain registration under section 435-

IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a non-banking financial company, are not applicable to the Company

Note - 47
Accounting Ratios
As at As at
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Variance % | Remarks
E . Current ~
(a) Current Ratio (times) Current Assets : 180.49 15147 19%|N.A
Liabilities
Due 10 repayment of
. : i - short  term  borr s
(b) Debt-Equity Rano Total Debt Total Equity - (.0006 -100% AR Y _"‘“"'P
during the financial vear
ended March 31, 2024
Earnings I_,;ln. 10 rcput_:mcm of
(¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio available for Debt Service NA 30.22 Nal® u.rt Mm, PHOWINES
debt service during the financial vear
ended March 31. 2024
Higher  profit  eamed
i - s pomanly due 10 lower
(d) Return on Equity Ratio blctproiie Avcrage S 6550 3 370 s
d) Re on Eg 0 7 .55% 212 95%}i p S50
e (loss) after tax |holder's equiry » 195% | impairment losses during
the financial vear ended
March 31, 2024
; ; Cost of poods  |Average value .
(e} Inventory Turmover Ratio o e L 0" S
sold of inveniory - -
L Average trade
() Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio Net credit sales B 0.17 020 -14%|N.A
receivables )
= Net credit Average trade
() Trade Pavable Tumover Ratio N = . N.A N.A N.A N.A
g purchases pavables ;
Due 1o lower revenue and
(hy'Nét Capital Turriover Rati Revenue from  |Averape 0.01 i - increase in average
e £ ove o . ; (1R RS =3 wi ot al d
AR ‘ operations waorking capital % Ulltll}gtupll‘ﬂ during
the financial vear ended
March 31, 2024,
Higher  profit  eamed
N A primarily  due 1o lower
g x €l proht
(1) Net Profit Ratio ' Revenue 936.73° 177.84% 427 fimpairment losse
(loss) after tax i - 27%|impairment losses during
the financial vear ended
March 31, 2024
Due to increase in profit
1 ; Earnings before [Capital sarne .
(i) Return on Capital Employed = -Apite 6.55% 1879 s5up|camed during  the
interest and tax |Emploved financial  vear  ended
March 31, 2024
Income AN {of
. erage cosl o .
(k) Retum on Investment generated from ) N.A, NA N.A N.A

imvestments

mvestiments

Chartered \O

21
Accountants /3.
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Note - 48
(1) The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall,

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficianes) or
(b) provide any guarantee, secunity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianes.

(11) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds from any personis) or entitv(ies), including foreign entities ( Intermediaries) with the understanding ( whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediaries shall;

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

Note - 49
There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) during
the financial vears ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Note - 50
The Company has not taken any borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of secunity of current assets during the financial vears ended 31 March 2024 and 31
Mareh 2023,

Note - 51

The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender during the financial vears ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
Note - 52

The Company has not entered info any fransactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companmies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act. 1956 during the
financial vears ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Note - 53

There are no charges or satisfaction of charges vet to be registered with Registrar of Comp by the Company during the financial vears ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023,

Note - 54
The Company did not enter into any transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as income duning the financial years ended
31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961

Note - 55
The Company has not traded or invested in ervpto currency or virtual currency during the financial vears ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
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Note - 56
In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required 1o be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as on
31 March 2024 (Previous vear : Rs. Nil).

As per our report of even date
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